
Meeting Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

Work Session 
April 18, 2008 

 
The State College Borough Council met in a work session on Friday, April 18, 2008, in 
the State College Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street, State College, PA.  Ms. 
Goreham called the meeting to order at 12:09 p.m. 
 
Present:  Elizabeth A. Goreham, President of Council 
    Donald M. Hahn 
   Theresa D. Lafer 
    Silvi Lawrence 
    Peter Morris 
Absent:  Ronald L. Filippelli 
    James L. Rosenberger 
 
Also present:  Thomas J. Fountaine, II, Borough Manager; Thomas S. Kurtz, Assistant 
Borough Manager for Community Services; Carl R. Hess, Planning Director; Roger 
Dunlap, Assistant Borough Manager for Budget and Administration; Thomas R. King, 
Chief of Police; Amy R. Miller, Recording Secretary; members of the media; and other 
interested observers.     
 
Public hour.  Lisa Baumgartner, 129 Ridge Avenue, requested the zoning be changed 
to allow raising chickens in Borough backyards.  Ms. Baumgartner presented Council 
with a list of other large cities in the US that allow a large number of egg-laying hens 
and said that raising hens is an environmentally friendly hobby with no serious negative 
impacts on neighborhoods.  She added that she spoke with Zoning Officer Herman 
Slaybaugh who told her the current laws were adopted in 1959, and she asked that 
Council please consider changing the zoning restrictions.   
 
Council noted concerns because staff would have to spend a great deal of time 
amending the current ordinance and the Board of Health would have to set health and 
safety regulations.   
 
Staff noted the Borough’s Planning Commission (PC) would first receive the request 
and then the PC would then forward the request to the Board of Health.  Ms. 
Baumgartner volunteered to help with the research involved.   
 
Council suggested Ms. Baumgartner speak to her neighbors and also with her 
neighborhood association.  Staff noted that the request would be subject to a public 
hearing and the neighborhoods would be notified.   
 
Staff also noted that staff has had to enforce the ordinance because of noise 
complaints.   

 



West End Revitalization Plan.  Ms. Goreham said discussion of the West End would 
focus on inclusion of the O.W. Houts property in the revitalization area analysis.  Staff 
reported the Planning Commission asked whether to include the whole Houts property 
because the property was split with Ferguson Township.  Permission of the Ferguson 
Township Board of Supervisors is required for property in the Township to be included.  
Staff noted that conducting a redevelopment area analyses does not mean designating 
the area as a certified redevelopment area that projects will be initiated.  Both of these 
steps also require Township approval if property in the Township is included. 
 
Ginny Chuba, property owner in the West End, said she wanted to make Council aware 
that as a property owner in the West End, she was not comfortable with the plan that 
was passed by the previous Council.  She said she has completed a lot of work on her 
Patterson Street properties, but has concerns about whether to continue putting money 
into her other rental properties.  Ms. Chuba added that property owners are concerned if 
they do not buy into the plan, the Borough could take their properties by eminent 
domain and development their properties as the Borough sees fit. 
 
Council suggested having the Solicitor present at a future meeting to thoroughly review 
the laws relating to the RDA and eminent domain. 
 
Police Accreditation Report.  Chief King reported on the status of the accreditation 
process by the Police Department.  He noted the accreditation assessment is scheduled 
for early June.   
 
Intern.  Mark Henry retired as the Borough’s Health Officer and the Director of the 
Borough’s Department of Ordinance Enforcement and Public Health in March.  In the 
interim, Thomas Kurtz has been designated as Acting Director.  Also in the interim, staff 
is proposing to hire a student intern to work approximately 12 weeks to assist with 
ongoing programs in the department.  The intern will work on the neighborhood student 
return initiative that has been identified from the First Eight Weeks project last fall and 
the December strategic planning session as well as assisting with other limited projects 
and general assignments.   
 
At the April 21 meeting Council will be asked to authorize the intern at $10 per hour for 
12 weeks; funding would come from Mr. Henry’s unspent salary.  Council had no 
additional questions. 
 
Library Board Membership.  The COG Executive Committee asked the Centre Region 
municipalities to comment on the composition of the Library Board of Trustees.   
Halfmoon Township has recently joined the library program and appointed a 
representative to the Board of Trustees; the Library agreement provides that the second 
Ferguson Township seat goes to Halfmoon Township when it joins 
 
Council suggested giving Ferguson Township a share of the seat that rotates between 
College and Harris Townships and urging them to sign the library agreement, which 
would assure them of a second seat. 



 
Upcoming Agenda for Monday, April 21, 2008.  Council was briefed on a consent 
item regarding Statewide Tax Recovery, Inc. who would collect delinquent taxes.  He 
said the school district has hired Statewide for a number of years.  He added that 
Statewide collects a certain percentage on top of the taxes, but that the Borough would 
recoup all 100% of the delinquent tax.   
 
Items of Information.  Council President Goreham asked Council for feedback on the 
ABC Awards dinner.  She explained that the dinner is planned mostly by staff and 
suggests Council take a larger role in planning the future events.  Some of Council’s 
suggestions were to consider an alternative location and a possible speaker for the 
evening.   
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:04 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
  
__________________________________ 
Cynthia S. Hanscom 
Assistant Borough Secretary 


